Comhai'rle Cathrach
i Bhaile Atha Cliath
i " Dublin City Council

NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE ENVIRONMENT SPC
TO BE HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, DAME STREET, DUBLIN 2.,

ON WEDNESDAY, 29 JUNE 2016 AT 3.30 PM

10

AGENDA

WEDNESDAY, 29 JUNE 2016

Minutes of the meeting held on 27th April 2016.

Chairpersons Business.

Correspondence

Fill vacancy of the Chairperson of the Climate Change Subcommittee

Minutes of the Special Committee on Waste Regulations meetings held on 13th
April 2016, 27th April 2016, 19th May 2016

Consolidation of DCC depots / services. (Verbal Report)
Introduction of Pay by Weight for waste collection
Dublin Waste to Energy Project update report.

Plastics Recycling.

A.O.B.

PAGE

7-14

15-52



This page is intentionally left blank



* :_f_:_' airle Cathract
W o

ublin City Council

MINUTES OF THE ENVIRONMENT STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE
HELD ON 27" APRIL 2016

1. Minutes of the meeting held on 9" March 2016.
Order: Agreed
2. Matters arising.

Dublin Waste to Energy Project

Chairperson, Councillor Naoise O’Muiri circulated a draft report to Members that he
compiled on behalf of this Committee for consideration as required by the Capita
report. He intends to have this report included on the May City Council Agenda.

The Chair recommended that further reports on DWtE should issue to the wider
council on a 6 monthly basis.

The Chair went through the report referring to the key issues that have arisen over
the last number of Environment Strategic Policy Committee meeting to include

e SPC Membership representation on the Project Board and the Project Executive
Board.

e The amount of the Community Gain Fund and the Liaison Committee.

e Location of the Local Office.

e Dust & Air Quality Monitoring.

Members raised the following in relation to the Chair’s report.

e The Committee did not want to have membership of the Project and Project
Executive Boards but wanted an oversight role in relation to their proceedings.

e Flexibility in relation to future reports to the wider Council. In the event that
there is a deadlock between the officials and the members in relation to aspects
of the project 6 monthly reports may not be adequate

e The inclusion of traffic and transportation issued in future reports

The Chairperson responded

e Although it was not the view of all Members the minutes of previous meetings
reflect that the SPC sought membership of both the Project and Project Executive
Boards

e Future reports will issue to the wider council on a periodic basis or as required.

e Traffic issues have not as yet arisen but will be included in future reports as
required.

PBeeh




Order: Report that was circulated to be included on the May Agenda of the City
Council

Calculation of Community Gain Fund

This has been referred to the Finance Strategic Policy Committee and the Audit
Committee

Chairpersons Business.

None.

Correspondence.
None.
Recent Dumping Campaign and data protection concerns. (Report attached)

Eileen Gleeson, Senor Executive Officer circulated a report to Members outlining the
background and current status of the North Inner City Litter Action Group’s actions to
combat illegal dumping and littering.

The report covered the themes / actions below

e Background.

e Objectives of the Action Group.

e Bag Searches with statistical data.

e Compliance Surveys with statistical data.

e Fines.

e Community focussed activities.

e Enforcement of Housing Regulations Standards by way of Environmental
Health Inspections with statistical data.

e CCTV and data protection concerns.

Members raised the following points.

e The survey that showed 54% did not have compliant waste collections
arrangement is not in anyway a suggestion of delinquency, it is in fact due to
financial constraints.

e The introduction of the bulky household waste charge.

e There is no geographical coincidence why this is occurring the North Inner
City

e |f the CCTV / Posters campaign is not in breach of Data Protection Regulations
the initiative should be extended.

e The poor uptake on the services of the Green Schools Officer.

e |sthere an assessment of the Anti- Litter campaign in August 2015.

e Level of non-compliance with the Housing Standards regulations.

e Reward / Voucher system where improvement has occurred.

e The cost of these environmental initiatives and is there a levy being charged
to waste operators to contribute to such costs.

Phgds 2



e Itis odd that crimeline does not pose data protection problems when
publicising those involved in crime yet there is data protection issue with
releasing images of those involved in illegal dumping.

e There is little sympathy for the Data Protection Commissioner as trading off
rights of citizens to have bye-laws upheld versus data protection rights.

e |s DCC’s stand on this solid in terms of data protection.

e Was the Data Protection Commissioner acting on complaints.

e Demographic of those residents who are non-compliant with regulations

e Are waste operators involved in the anti-litter / illegal campaigns or do they
make a financial contribution.

e Can the dog fouling / anti-litter signage be enlarged.

e There is a correlation between illegal dumping and the cost of waste disposal.

e Itis clear that there are concentrations of poverty in the city and it is well
established that the North Inner City is one such area.

e Isit possible to get a list of residents who have waste collection
arrangements in place from the waste operators

Ms. Eileen Gleeson, Mr. John McPartlan & Mr. Declan Wallace responded

e The city neighbourhood awards encourage communities to get more involved
in their areas for which prizes are awarded.

e It was never the intention that those offenders would be publicly shamed. The
intention was to get the message out that it is illegal dump.

e The many initiatives undertaken have endeavoured to reduce the prevalence
of illegal dumping.

o We will continue to with these campaigns in the hope that the mindset of
those involved in illegal dumping is changed. It is intended to roll out such
campaigns city wide as adopted in the Litter Management Plan

e The Data Protection Commissioner raised concerns after seeing articles in the
media.

e There were in excess off 900 landlords that were non compliant with waste
regulations

o DCC collects illegally dumped bags, not waste that is properly presented for
collection by waste operators

e The charging of waste companies does not arise as what is being collected by
DCC is illegally dumped material

e Ifillegal dumping was specifically linked to financial constraints this practice
would occur in other less affluent areas of the city which is not the case. It
occurs in areas where people choose to dump.

e DCC does not have the opportunity to prosecute landlords given the current
legal situation.

o The size of the signage will be reviewed.

o The 54% of residents deemed non compliant are those that we failed to
contact.

e The cost of the litter / dumping campaigns is met by DCC.

e We are conscious that not all residents can have a bin but where a property is
deemed suitable the householder must use bins. It is anticipatated that bins
will reduce littering.

o |t will be law in July that waste collection arrangements lists can be provided.

Order: Noted

PRdge%



Update on Independent Expert Assessment of Dollymount Flood Defences

The Director of Traffic gave a verbal update to members on the current status of this
project in light of the engagement of an independent expert. The main points of the
report are set out below.

The Flood Defences & Sutton to Sandycove Cycleway went through the
statutory processes, i.e. Part 8 and An Bord Pleanala.

Councillors felt there was a lack of consultation with the public and that the
public were unhappy with the height of the flood defences.

Two groups were established to facilitate consultation, An Environmental
Liaison Group and a Public Consultation Group. The Public Consultation was
made up of residents, businesses and local councillors.

The services of an independent expert were engaged to examine the
rationale used by DCC to determine the height of the defences and DCC
agreed to be bound by the expert’s findings.

The Independent Expert endorsed DCC’s proposals but advised that there
was some room for a reduction in the defence’s height.

DCC agreed to reduce the height of the wall by 200 millimetres. This would
result in the defences having to be raised within 25 years if the forecasted
sea level rises materialise.

The Local groups were not satisfied with the 200 mm reduction and sought
600 mm. (From Mount Prospect to the wooden bridge).

It was agreed subject to certain checks a reduction of 300 mm will occur. The
feasibility of this reduction will be known soon.

Members raised the following.

Thanked the Director of Traffic for his patience in dealing with the concerns
of residents.

Who is the Independent expert

When is the next meeting of the Dollymount engagement committee.

The Director of Traffic responded.

Dr. Jimmy Murphy is the independent expert.

Membership of the Committee has been determined and meetings are not
open to the public. The independent Expert’s report will be forwarded to
Robert Moss

Order: Report Noted
Minutes of Waste Regulations Subcommittee held on 24™ March 2016. (Copy
attached)

Members raised the following concerns.

Waste operators aggressively targeting residents currently in receipt of a bag
collection service to change bins even where areas have been deemed
suitable for bag collection.

Report on the workings of the committee

The Director of Traffic responded

Pages *



10.

e The subcommittee met today and Greyhound representatives were in
attendance.

e Those residents changing from bags will not be compelled to change to bins
before July; those areas that are given derogation for bag collections will
remain as bag or mixed collections. Greyhound will publicise this on their
website.

e Minutes of today’s / future meetings will be on the June agenda of the SPC.

Order: Minutes noted

Dublin Waste to Energy update report.
Order: Report noted

Issues referred from the Public Participation Network Environmental Linkage Group
Meeting held on 15™ March 2016.

(i) Dublin Bay Tidal Flood Prevention Walls are not suitable at Clontarf and
Sandymount. This is because of the prevalence of pluvial flooding at both of
these sites. Previously the sea wall at Clontarf has had to be breached to
release pluvial flood water. Demountable barriers are required at these sites
rather than a sea wall. (Report attached)

(i) Prioritisation of the orbital sewer within West Dublin. This is to avoid
continued flooding at Ringsend caused by storm waters being directed into
the frequently overloaded water treatment plant. (Report Attached)

The reports that issued were discussed and the following points were raised

¢ Non demountable walls are unsuitable as permanent barriers would block
the outflow of flood water into Dublin Bay when pluvial flooding occurs

e The necessity of completing sewage works to relieve the load sent to the
Ringsend Wastewater treatment plant when heavy rainfall occurs. This
causes water treatment plant to overflow which leads to pollution.

e |s Sandymount also being assessed.

The Director of Traffic responded that the sewage works is an Irish Water Capital
Project.

The feasibility of the use of demountable barriers is being assessed but is only for the
450 metre stretch of the flood defences.

A.O.B.
Councillor O’Moore raised the issue of recycling plastics and a bigger emphasis

should be put on this.
It was agreed that this will be listed as an item at future SPC meeting.

PRee



Attendance
Members

Councillor Claire Byrne

William Brennan — Dublin Community Growers
Councillor Hazel DeNortuin

Councillor Andrew Keegan

Councillor Edel Moran

Robert Moss - Dublin City Community Forum
Councillor Michael O’Brien

Councillor Ciaran O’Moore

Councillor Naoise O Muiri (Chairperson)

Apologies
Joe McCarthy - An Taisce

Absent

Councillor Catherine Ardagh

Nicholas Cloake, Dublin Docklands Business Forum
Councillor Declan Flanagan

Councillor Mannix Flynn

Officials

Declan Wallace, Director of Traffic

Eileen Gleeson, Senior Executive Officer

John McPartlan, Public Domain Enforcement Officer
James Nolan, Executive Engineer

Ciaran McGoldrick, Staff Officer

Owen Sweeney, Staff Officer

Councillor Naoise O Muiri
Chairperson, 28" April 2016.

Phgdt ©



' Dublin City Council

Minutes of the Meeting Special Committee on Waste Regulations held on 13" April 2016.

1.

Minutes of Meeting held on 24" March 2016
Action: Agreed

Review of Actions arising from previous meeting:

Actions

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

Helen McNamara’s / Martina Campbell’s contact details to be forwarded to the
group.

Status: Completed. Clir MacVeigh advised that these contact details had been
circulated and to expect a number of applications for designation.

Draft Statement to raise public awareness to be developed for the next meeting.
Status: Completed. Draft circulated and discussed at meeting. Text agreed without
changes.

Further action: Statement to be uploaded to DCC website, circulated to committee
members and to Area Offices as soon as possible.

Invite Greyhound to meet group.

Status: Completed. H. McNamara advised that Greyhound had been invited but was
unable to attend due to prior commitments. GRR confirmed that it would attend
next meeting on receipt of suitable notice.

Further action: DCC to notify GRR of date of next meeting and issue an invitation to
attend.

Results of street survey to be forwarded to group when finalised.

Status: Completed. Draft lists circulated at meeting for review and discussion.
Further action: DCC to circulate 3 no. summary sheets to Group leaders for review
with a cover letter to be prepared by DCC. Comments are to be sent to Committee
members.

Sample Waste Collection Permit to be available at the next meeting.

Status: Completed. Sample WCP circulated and discussed at meeting. The
Committee requested that an amendment to condition 6.6.1 be drafted and
submitted to the National Waste Collection Permit Office, which would instruct a
Permit Holder to provide a bag collection service to householders in areas designated
as being only suitable for the collection of household kerbside waste in non-reusable
receptacles such as bags or for areas suitable for mixed collections.

Further action: DCC to draft amendment to WCP for submission to NWCPO

Page 7



3.

Issues Raised at meeting:

ClIr. Flynn requested that the minutes of the meeting of this committee be forwarded to the
Chair of the Environment SPC.
Order: Agreed.

(i) Landlords and Multi-let Units

There was a general discussion on the issue of landlords failing to take responsibility for
waste management in multi-let properties and the problems associated with this. A number
of avenues were explored including the new regulations for the Housing Rental Sector to

issue from the DOECLG. It was agreed that this issue would continue to be monitored
through this committee and check if guidelines issue on the matter.

(ii) Email from Cllr. Dermot Lacey circulated and discussed. Issue relating to Cambridge
Avenue resolved as it is proposed to continue as a bag area. Other issues noted.

In attendance

Councillors

Councillor Tina McVeigh (Chairperson)
Councillor Claire Byrne

Councillor Gaye Fagan

Councillor Mannix Flynn

Councillor Mary Freehill

Councillor Eilis Ryan

Councillor Ray McAdam

Officials

Declan Wallace, Director of Traffic
Helen McNamara, Senior Executive officer

Apologies:
Lord Mayor Criona Ni Dhalaigh

Next meeting Wednesday 27" April 2.00 pm

Meeting Closed.

Page 8



i iract
I Dublin City Council

Minutes of the Meeting Special Committee on Waste Regulations held on 19" May 2016.

1. Minutes of 27" April 2016
Agreed

2. Updated lists

Lists reviewed and discussed. Agreed that once the designation process was complete to
review again within 6 months. Cllr. McAdam requested that the committee stay in place

post designation.

3. Revised and updated lists to be circulated to Group Leaders for comment — remind them

that lists are not for general distribution. Committee and group leaders to forward
comments to HMcN by COB on Wednesday 25™ May.

HMCcN advised that she was circulating lists to waste industry with same restrictions and
deadlines and that the intention would be to make the designation order on Monday 30"

June 2016.
4. Draft amendment to WCP to be prepared for next meeting (HMcN).

5. Next meeting Thursday 26" May at 2.00 p.m.

In attendance

Councillors

Councillor Tina McVeigh (Chairperson)
Councillor Claire Byrne

Councillor Mannix Flynn

Councillor Ray McAdam

Clir Ciaran Cuffe

Clir Mary Freehill

Officials

Helen McNamara, Senior Executive officer
Simon Brock, AO DCC

Apologies:

Lord Mayor Criona Ni Dhalaigh

Declan Wallace

Next meeting Thursday 26 n May @ 2.00pm

Meeting Closed.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



)|
X

Dublin City Council

Minutes of the Meeting Special Committee on Waste Regulations held on 27" April 2016.

1.

Meeting with Greyhound (GRR):

The Chair welcomed John Brosnan MD (JB), Greyhound Household and Conor Quinn (CQ)
Communications Consultant with Greyhound Household who agreed to attend the meeting
following complaints received by Members from constituents regarding the manner in which
GRR was endeavouring to move customers from bag collections to bin collections.

In summary the Members highlighted the following issues:

Clir. Dermot Lacey reported that residents in Portobello were told that there would only be
bin collections in this area post 1° July and that GRR would not be collecting bags.

Cllr Ray McAdam reported that in the North Strand and Phibsborough areas, residents had
received intimidating emails stating that a wheelie bin account was required.

Cllr Gaye Fagan advised that the East Wall area issues had been resolved but that it was still
important for people to know that bags will still be collected after 1* July

ClIr Eilis Ryan stated that there was an impression in the North Inner City that bags will cease
to be collected after July

Cllr Tina MacVeigh reported that there were burnt out bins left uncollected in the
Ballyfermot/Ranch Area and that GRR were leaving bins on footpaths in this area also.

In response, JB explained the process that his agents are instructed to follow:

The agents either go door to door or deal with customers over the phone— both have a script
to follow. If a complaint is received about an agent, the person can be identified easily.
There is follow up with Team leaders and call backs on customer satisfaction.

In relation to the continuance of bag collections post July, JB confirmed that GRR would still
be providing this service on the designated streets.

Clir Ryan stated that the GRR agents should not be targeted on this matter as it was a GRR
issue and that there were differing perspectives on the suitability of streets for bins. She
further stated that GRR appeared to be making a decision on the designation of the streets in
the absence of DCC making the designation.

Clir Ryan enquired if the agents were incentivised and whether the collection of bags was
profitable.

JB confirmed that GRR has its own view on suitable properties for bins. GRR incentivises
customers to use bins as it is cheaper but there is no pressure at the doors to take bins. On
the profitability of bags he advised that they cause problems: they are not chipped so no GPS
which is not satisfactory. Bins are easier to manage — bags at best, are break even. CQ stated
that bags cause litter issues, illegal dumping around bags and Health & Safety issues e.g.
needles.

Page 11



ClIr Claire Byrne stated that GRR were scare mongering but appreciated the fact that steps
were being taken to incentivise customers. She asked what GRR was going to do when pay
by weight came in. JB stated that this was a commercial issue and that the minimum charges
set out in the regulations were below cost. CQ advised that GRR would be commencing a
Roadshow next month on the introduction of Pay by Weight.

Cllr Lacey enquired if any progress had been made on developing a 3 in 1 system for
collection. JB advised that there were no trucks available at present with technology for this.

Clir Byrne enquired if pay by weight could be applied to bags. JB confirmed that GRR trucks
already had system on board for bins and bags.

Cllr Ray McAdam enquired about the linkages between DCC and GRR. Helen (HMcN) advised
that DCC had historical route information which had been transferred to GRR when it exited
the waste collection service and had kept in touch with GRR on updating the information is so
far as the bag routes were concerned.

Cllr Ryan enquired as to the numbers using bags. JB estimated about 15k and said that GRR
had lost a lot of customers due to it enforcing the regulations i.e. registering customers etc.

Clir Byrne asked for contact details for GRR. CQ said he would issue to HMcN for circulation
to members.

Cllr MacVeigh summarised the discussion saying that it was a breach of DCC byelaws to leave
bins on streets and that GRR had embarked on an aggressive campaign. She suggested that
GRR should, in an effort to allay further anxiety, put up on-line that they will continue to
collect bags as usual in all areas until the guidelines issue from the DOECLG and will continue
to collect bags on the designated streets when this process is completed. She thanked GRR
for attending and GRR left the meeting.

Minutes of Meeting held on 13" April 2016
Action: Agreed

Review of Actions arising from previous meeting:

Actions

(i) Draft Statement to raise public awareness to be developed for the next meeting.
Status: Completed. Draft circulated and discussed at meeting. Text agreed without
changes.

Completed : Statement uploaded to DCC website, circulated to committee members
and to Area Officess.

(i) DCC to circulate 3 no. summary sheets to Group leaders for review with a cover letter
to be prepared by DCC. Comments are to be sent to Committee members.
Completed.

(iii) Sample Waste Collection Permit . The Committee requested that an amendment to

condition 6.6.1 be drafted and submitted to the National Waste Collection Permit
Office, which would instruct a Permit Holder to provide a bag collection service to

Page 12



householders in areas designated as being only suitable for the collection of
household kerbside waste in non-reusable receptacles such as bags or for areas
suitable for mixed collections.

Not completed: DCC to draft amendment to WCP for submission to NWCPO

(iv) Minutes of this committee to be forwarded to Environment SPC
Completed. Minutes of the 24" March went to Environment SPC meeting on the
27" April.

4. Issues Raised at meeting:

Cllr. MacVeigh was advised that there was no further update from the DOECLG and that bags
were excluded from the current regulations. Cllr MacVeigh asked that the survey list be
updated and re-circulated. She also asked that The Ranch Ballyfermot, Lombard St W be
included. Cllr McAdam asked that Charleville Road, Phibsborough be included in the review
also.

Clir MacVeigh asked that members remind group leaders not to circulate the survey lists.
HMCcN to circulate guidelines when available.

HMcN

In attendance

Councillors

Councillor Tina McVeigh (Chairperson)
Councillor Claire Byrne

Councillor Gaye Fagan

Councillor Mannix Flynn

Councillor Eilis Ryan

Councillor Ray McAdam

Councillor Dermot Lacey

Officials

Declan Wallace, Director of Traffic
Helen McNamara, Senior Executive officer

Apologies:
Lord Mayor Criona Ni Dhalaigh

Councillor Mary Freehill

Next meeting Thursday 19" May @ 3.30 pm

Meeting Closed.

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



b} Combhairle Cathrach
Bhaile Atha Cliath
W ' Dublin City Council

Environment and Transportation Department,
Block 2, Floor 6,

Civic Offices,

Dublin 8.

22 June 2016.

To Each Member of the
Environment Strategic Policy Committee

Dublin Waste to Energy (DWtE) Project

1. Construction Status

Construction remains on schedule for completion in Q3 2017.

1.1 Progress to Date

Progress in the key areas are summarised below:

Construction
Construction is currently programmed on a 24/7 basis.

Both the civil designer, PM Group Limited and the process system designer, Hitachi Zosen
Inova (HZI) has reported that their design and procurement activities are now substantially
complete and that all their key subcontractors are in place.

PM Group Limited, the civil designer and construction manager continue to manage and
monitor all construction activity on site.

o The main focus of PM Group and their subcontractors remains:

= the installation and fit out of the floors of the administration building,
* works associated with the installation of the buildings’ exterior cladding,
= the installation of the ramp to the tipping hall.

Hitachi Zosen Inova (HZI), the process systems designer continue to manage all process

equipment installation and facility commissioning through to the commencement of
operations

o The main focus of HZI and their subcontractors activities are:
» installation of both boiler lines of the facility,
= jnstallation of the process equipment,
= jnspection and review of process equipment manufacturing.

Page 15



Site Aerial View Looking Southeast May 2016 (Copyright PML)

Page 16



2. Environmental Impact

Environmental monitoring and mitigation measures continued to be implemented during the
construction phase of the DWHE facility and the construction phase environmental report for quarter
1 (January —- March) 2016 is presented as Appendix 1 to this report.

All reports are also available for download at the Dublin Waste to Energy Website.
3. Community Liaison

The Community Gain Liaison Committee (CGLC) met in May and assessed the applications received
for grants less that €100k from the DWtE Community Gain Fund {(CGF).

The CGLC:
e has approved a number of grant applications,
e requested additional information from a number of applicants prior to finalising their
decision, and
e deemed a number of applications to be unsuccessful.

The administrator to the CGLC is in the process of informing all applicants of the CGLC decisions.

The CGLC will meet again in July to commence assessment of applications received from applicants
seeking grants in excess of €100k from the DWtE Community Gain fund.

4. Compliance with statutory consents

There are no non-compliance issues to report.

Declan Wallace
Director of Traffic

Page 17



Page 18



Powaring Today Protecting Tomorrow

GROUP

Dublin Waste to Energy

Issue date: 26 April 2016

Page 19



PWA

GROUP

COVANTA

Powering Today. Protecting Tomorrow

Construction Phase Environmental Monitoring Report

- Quarter 1 (January - March) 2016

Signoff

Originator

Checked

Approver

Date

Name

Ray Derrig

Paul O'Sullivan

Keith Elliott

26th April 2016

Page 20



Covanta Europe Engineering Limited

M Dublin Waste to Energy Facility
IE0311183-22-RP-0058, Issue B

GiRio U P PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0058

26/04/20186

Contents
1 Introduction 4
2 Local Environment 5
3 Noise 6
3.1 Noise Guidance & Standards 6
3.2 Measurement Parameters 6
3.3 Construction Noise Limits at Sensitive Locations 7
3.4 Noise Monitoring Results 7
3.5 Conclusion 8
4 Dust Deposition 10
4.1 Monitoring Method 10
4.2 Monitoring Results 10
43 Conclusion 12
5 Surface Water 13
5.1 Monitoring Method 13
52 Monitoring Results 13
53 Conclusion 15
Appendix A 16
Noise Data 16
|IE03011183-22-RP-0053_A_01 doc Page 3 of 33
Formal Issue

Page 21



Covanta Europe Engineering Limited

PM Dublin Waste to Energy Facility
IE0311183-22-RP-0058, Issue B

GROUP PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0058

26/04/2016

1 Introduction

An environmental monitoring programme has been implemented during the construction stage of
the Dublin Waste to Energy (DWTE) Project. In conjunction with the monitoring, a number of
controls and procedures have been implemented during construction activities to avoid, or
minimise, potential adverse impacts to the environment and local community.

The monitoring programme assists in demonstrating compliance with the conditions and
requirements laid out in An Bord Pleanala Order-29S.EF2022, Condition 13d; “A scheme for
monitoring noise, dust deposition and suspended solids in surface water run-offs and adjacent
waters shall be prepared for the construction phase of the development. Details of the scheme
shall be made available for inspection at the offices of Dublin City Council and at a local office in
the Ringsend/Poolbeg area prior to the commencement of construction works. Monitoring shall be
carried out during the construction phase and reports on the monitoring shall be made available for
inspection at the offices in question on a 3 monthly basis. The reports shall compare monitored
results with standards set out in the environmental impact statement or standards given in
recognised national or international guidelines as relevant.”

Construction of the DWTE facility recommenced in October 2014 and an environmental monitoring
programme in accordance with the ‘Dublin Waste to Energy - Construction Phase Monitoring
Scheme’ September 2009 has been implemented. The 1st Quarterly Report 2016 on the
Construction Phase Monitoring Scheme relates to environmental monitoring undertaken for the
period of January to March 2016. The PM Group construction management team were present on
site throughout the January to March 2016 monitoring period. The PM Group construction
management team ensured construction works were undertaken to comply with environmental
procedures for the site. Environmental monitoring with regards to noise, dust deposition and
suspended solids in surface water commenced with construction works.

IE03011183-22-RP-0053_A_01.doc Page 4 of 33

Format Issue
Page 22



PW

GROUP

Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
Dublin Waste to Energy Facility
IE0311183-22-RP-0058, Issue B
PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0058
26/04/2016

2 Local Environment

The main population centres of Ringsend, Irishtown and Sandymount are located approximately
1km from the boundary of the site.

The closest sensitive receptors to the site are the residential properties at Pigeon House Road
which are located approximately 865m west of the site boundary. A map of sensitive locations and
environmental monitoring points (noise, dust and surface water) are included in Figure 2.1.

The identified sensitive noise locations are N1 — N6 as follows:

N1 - Rehab Institute

N2 — Seafort Avenue

N3 — Beach Avenue

N4 — Leukos Road

N5 — Pigeon House Road

N6 — Walkway (Irishtown Nature Reserve)

[

I; DS e i ===
i A y

Ughihones
-Luaun HARBOUR

i‘“il ﬂ% 'l L\__‘Urﬂ

.
41

e No. EN 0003416 @ Ordnance Survey lreland

Figure 2.1: Environmental Monitoring Locations

1E03011183-22-RP-0053_A_01.doc

Page 23

Page 5 of 33
Formal Issue



PW

GROUP

Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
Dublin Waste to Energy Facility
1E0311183-22-RP-0058, Issue B
PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0058
26/04/2016

3.1

3.2

Noise

Monitoring of noise levels at sensitive locations is required during construction to assess
compliance with the requirements of the Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) and An Bord
Pleanala Order-29S.EF2022, Condition 13d. Refer to Figure 2.1 in Section 2 for the monitoring
locations.

Noise Guidance & Standards
The noise monitoring was conducted in accordance with the following guidance:

- International Standard |SO 1996-1:2003 - Acoustics — Description, Measurement and
assessment of Environmental Noise

- BS 4142:2014 - Methods for rating and assessing industrial and commercial sound

- BS 5228-1:2009 + A1:2014 — Code of practice for noise and vibration control on construction
and open sites - Part 1: Noise.

Measurement Parameters

Noise is measured in terms of decibels (dB). The various measurement parameters and noise
terminology are defined below.

- Decibel (dB)

Decibel (dB) is the standard unit for expressing the noise level (sound pressure level). It is
calculated as a logarithm of the intensity of sound. It is derived from the logarithm of the ratio
between the value of a quantity and a reference quantity. For sound pressure level the reference
quantity is 20uPa which is the threshold of normal hearing and equates to 0dB. At the upper end of
the scale 140dB is the threshold of pain.

- A-weighted Decibel (dBA)

Decibels measured on a sound level meter incorporating a frequency weighting (A weighting)
which differentiates between sound of different frequency (pitch) in a similar way to the human ear.
This takes account of the fact that the human ear has different sensitivities to sound at different
frequencies.

- I-Aeq

The equivalent continuous sound level — the sound pressure level of a steady sound having the
same energy as a fluctuating sound over a specified measuring period. It can be considered similar
to an average level. The Laeq value is the A-weighted Leq.

- Lago and Lajo Values

The Lago and Laqo values represent the A-weighted sound pressure levels exceeded for a
percentage of the instrument measuring time. The Lag, represents the sound pressure level
exceeded for 90% of the monitoring period and is a good indicator of the background noise level
excluding peak noise events. Laqo indicates the sound pressure level exceeded for 10% of the
monitoring period and is a good parameter for expressing event noise such as passing traffic.

- LAMax (dBA)
The maximum instantaneous value recorded over the monitoring period including A-weighting
- Measurement Time

The noise monitoring will be undertaken over a 30min time interval which is a sufficient time to
establish that the measured noise adequately represents the subject source of the noise.

IE03011183-22-RP-0053_A_01.doc Page 6 of 33

Formal Issue

Page 24



PW

GROUP

Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
Dublin Waste to Energy Facility
1E0311183-22-RP-0058, Issue B
PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0058
26/04/2016

3.3

3.4

3.441

Construction Noise Limits at Sensitive Locations

Ambient noise levels at the nearest sensitive locations (Sandymount and Ringsend areas) to the
site have being established based on review of the Environmental Impact Statement, Dublin City
Noise Map model and preconstruction noise monitoring. These ambient measurements at the
noise sensitive locations are compared against the values identified in “British Standard 5228-
1:2009+A1:2014: Code of practice for noise and vibration control on construction and open sites —
Part 1:Noise " and maximum permissible noise levels at fagade dwellings are recommended. The
maximum noise levels are presented in Table 3.1 below.

Ambient noise level at sensitive locations is found to be similar or higher than those monitored at
site boundary locations. The noise at sensitive receptors is affected by localised noise sources,
mainly road traffic with any noise sources emitted from site difficult to define. For this reason site
boundary noise monitoring will be the main noise source monitored as opposed to sensitive
locations. The site boundary noise monitored is calculated to determine its contribution to local
residential areas and compared to British Standard 5228-1:2009+A1:2014: Code of practice for
noise and vibration control on construction and open sites — Part 1:Noise ”

Table 3.1: Maximum Permissible Noise Levels at the Facade of Dwellings during Construction

Sensitive Locations

Rehab Seafort Beach Leukos Pigeon V\_lalkway
Institute Avenue Avenue Road LT LA
Road Nature Park
Daytime
Monday - Friday
0700hrs to 1900hrs 65 &= - &8 ok 65
Rating level, Laeq (1hr)dBA
Evenings and Weekends
1900hrs to 1100hrs 55 55 55 55 55 55
Rating level, Laeq (1hr)dBA
Night time
2300hrs to 0700hrs 50 50 50 50 50 50
Rating level, Laeq (1hr)dBA

Noise Monitoring Results

Monitoring was undertaken at site boundaries and sensitive locations during construction works.
The survey was carried out over the months January to March 2016. The surveys involved a 30
minute sample period taken at each of the noise monitoring locations.

Noise Calculations from Boundary Sampling Locations

Noise levels were monitored at the site boundary locations to enable the contribution of the
January to March 2016 DWTE site activities to the noise levels at the sensitive receptors to be
calculated (using the ‘British Standard 5228-1:2009+A1:2014: Code of practice for noise and
vibration control on construction and open sites — Part 1: Noise”). The calculated contribution was
then compared to the noise levels monitored at the sensitive receptors to establish whether site
activities were likely to be causing a significant negative impact at the sensitive receptors.

Monitored noise levels at the western and southern boundaries, as the closest boundaries to the
sensitive receptors, were selected to be used in the calculation of noise levels at the sensitive
receptors. On this basis, when both are available, the southern boundary is used to calculate the
noise level contributions at the Rehab Institute, Seafort Avenue, Beach Avenue and Irishtown
Nature Park with the western boundary used to calculate the noise level contributions at the Pigeon
House Road and Leukos Road.

IE03011183-22-RP-0053_A_01.doc Page 7 of 33

Formal Issue

Page 25



PW

GROUP

Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
Dublin Waste to Energy Facility
IE0311183-22-RP-0058, Issue B
PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0058
26/04/2016

3.5

Using the BS 5228 Standard calculation, the highest contribution of noise calculated for the months
of January to March 2016 at each of the sensitive locations are presented in Table 3.2.

Table 3.2: The Contribution of the DWTE Site Activities to Noise Levels at Sensitive Receptors

Sensitive Locations

Rehab Seafort | Beach | Leukos Pigeon | Irishtown
House Nature

Time Month | Institute | Avenue | Avenue | Road Road Park

N1 N2 N3 N4 N5 N6

Daytime January 35 34 32 36 37 48
Resuilts level, February 38 37 36 36 36 51
Laeq(30 min)dBA March 36 36 34 33 34 50
Evening Time January 32 31 29 25 25 45
Results level, February 25 24 23 24 25 38
Laeq(30 min)dBA March 30 30 28 29 30 44
Nightime Results January 25 24 23 28 28 38

level, Laeq(30 February 22 21 20 21 21 35
min)dBA March 25 24 23 24 24 38

Conclusion

As noise readings at sensitive locations are affected by local noise sources, the most accurate way
to determine if noise is impacting the local residential areas is to use site boundary monitoring
readings and calculate the contribution of this noise to the closest sensitive receptors. Noise levels
at the western and southern site boundaries were monitored during the January to March 2016
period and their contribution to the closest residential sensitive receptors calculated. Most
construction works occur during the daytime hours with limited construction occurring thereafter.
Noise monitoring was undertaken at sensitive receptors (Sandymount and Ringsend areas) and
site boundaries on similar days to allow comparison over the quarterly monitoring period.

Maximum permissible noise levels during construction are detailed in Table 3.1.

The sensitive locations are situated up to 1km away from site boundaries and noise contributions
from site to local residential areas were calculated with the results provided in Table 3.2. The
calculated noise level contributions are significantly lower than the maximum permissible noise
levels. The greatest daytime noise level contribution from site activities at a residential sensitive
receptor was 38dBA at Rehab Institute, with the greatest daytime noise level contribution at
Irishtown Nature Park calculated to be 51dBA. The greatest evening time noise level contribution at
a residential sensitive receptor was 32dBA at Rehab Institute, with the greatest evening time noise
level contribution at Irishtown Nature Park calculated to be 45dBA. The greatest night-time time
noise level contribution at a residential sensitive receptor was 28dBA at Leukos Road, with the
greatest night-time noise level contribution at Irishtown Nature Park was calculated to be 38dBA.

Ambient noise levels at sensitive locations were found to be similar or higher than those monitored
at site boundary locations. The highest noise level of 73.9dBA (Appendix A -Table 1.2) was
monitored at Beech Avenue (N3) sensitive receptor during this reporting period. This is higher than
the closest boundary location to this location (southern) which had lower readings at similar times.
This indicates that noise levels at the sensitive receptors assessed during the January — March
2016 construction period are predominantly affected by localised noise sources, mainly road traffic.

IE03011183-22-RP-0053_A_01.doc Page 8 of 33

Formal Issue

Page 26



Covanta Europe Engineering Limited

PM Dublin Waste to Energy Facility
IE0311183-22-RP-0058, Issue B

GIRIO U'P PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0058

26/04/2016

On this basis, it can be concluded that the DWTE site activities undertaken are not resulting in
exceedances of the construction noise limit values at sensitive receptors1 during the assessed
period.

Detailed noise monitoring data is included in Appendix A.

1 Noise is measured using a logarithmic scale that ranges from 0 dBA to about 140 dBA and approximates the range of
human hearing. However, due to the logarithmic nature of the decibel scale, the sound levels for different noise sources
cannot be added directly for a combined sound level. For example, two adjacent sound sources with the same sound
level have a composite noise level only 3 decibels greater than either source; two adjacent sound sources with sound
levels that differ by 10 decibels have a composite noise leve!l only 0.4 decibels greater than the louder source.

IE03011183-22-RP-0053_A_01.doc Page 9 of 33

Formal Issue
Page 27



PW

GROUP

Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
Dublin Waste to Energy Facility
1E0311183-22-RP-0058, Issue B
PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0058
26/04/2016

4.1

4.2

4.21

Dust Deposition

A scheme for monitoring dust deposition and direction has been developed for the construction
phase of the development.

Monitoring Method

Monitoring was overseen by the Project Environmental Consultant and undertaken by independent
laboratory in accordance with the ‘Dublin Waste to Energy - Construction Phase Monitoring
Scheme’, September 2009. Dust monitoring locations D1 — D4 are shown in Figure 2.1.

There are no legislative regulations regarding fugitive dust during construction either in Ireland or
the UK. The “Technical Instructions on Air Quality Control — TA Luft" 2002 emission value for
dustfall of 350 mg/m?/day is therefore used as the maximum guideline level during construction.

Monitoring Results

Weather Conditions

The average weather conditions during the January to March 2016 monitoring period are given
below (http://www.wunderground.com);

- January 2016
- Average Precipitation: 1.8mm/day
- Average Wind Speed: 23.8km/hr
- Average Temperature: 5.4°C
- Total Precipitation: 56.6mm

- February 2016
- Average Precipitation: 1.2mm/day
- Average Wind Speed: 24.0km/hr
- Average Temperature: 4.1°C
- Total Precipitation: 36.1mm

- March 2016
- Average Precipitation: 0.8mm/day
- Average Wind Speed: 19.0km/hr
- Average Temperature: 6.0°C

- Total Precipitation: 24.38mm

IE03011183-22-RP-0053_A_01.doc Page 10 of 33

Formal Issue

Page 28



Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
Dublin Waste to Energy Facility
IE0311183-22-RP-0058, Issue B
PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0058
26/04/2016

PA

GROUP

4.2.2 Dust Deposition — Bergerhoff Gauges

The dust deposition results from the Bergerhoff gauges are given in Tables 4.1 — 4.3. Refer to
Figure 2.1 in Section 2 for the monitoring locations.

Table 4.1: Dust Deposition Results — January 2016

Sample Date Date Days Dust Dust Rate of TA Luft
Locations Deployed Collected [Exposed| Gauge r(rt‘ollected Dus_t' Lin:it
Diameter g/gauge Deposition mg/m?/day
(cm) mg/m?/day ACg:laL;ael)
1 (West) 08.12.2015 | 13/01/2016 36 9.5 39.9 156.4 350
2 (North) 08.12.2015 | 13/01/2016 36 9.5 417 163.4 350
3 (East) 08.12.2015 | 13/01/2016 36 9.5 30.3 118.7 350
4 (South) | 08.12.2015 | 13/01/2016 36 9.5 275 107.8 350

Table 4.2: Dust Deposition Results — February 2016

Sample Date Date Days Dust Dust Rate of TA Luft
Locations Coliected Exposed Gauge Collected Dust Limit
Deployed e -
; mg/gauge 'Deposition mg/m?/day
Diameter A i
mg/m?/day ((XiNITE
(cm) Average)
1 (West) 13/01/2016 | 09/02/2016 27 9.5 17.6 92.0 350
2 (North) 13/01/2016 | 09/02/2016 27 9.5 10.9 57.0 350
3 (East) 13/01/2016 | 09/02/2016 27 9.5 212 110.8 350
4 (South) 13/01/2016 | 09/02/2016 27 9.5 26.9 140.6 350

Table 4.3: Dust Deposition Results — March 2016

Sample Date Date Days Dust Dust Rate of TA Luft
Locations Deploved Collected Exposed Gauge Collected Dust Limit
pioy ’ mg/gauge Deposition mg/m?/day
Diameter A i
mg/m?/day (TIE
(cm) Average)
1 (West) 09/02/2016 | 08/03/2016 28 9.5 261 131.5 350
2 (North) 09/02/2016 | 08/03/2016 28 9.5 21.8 109.8 350
3 (East) 09/02/2016 | 08/03/2016 28 9.5 30.4 163.2 350
4 (South) 09/02/2016 | 08/03/2016 28 9.5 17.2 86.7 350

IE03011183-22-RP-0053_A_01.doc

Page 29

Page 11 of 33
Formal Issue




Covanta Europe Engineering Limited

M Dublin Waste to Energy Facility
IE0311183-22-RP-0058, Issue B

GROuUP PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0058

26/04/2016

Table 4.4: Dust Deposition Results — Annual Average March 2015 — March 2016

Sample Commencement Completion Days Rate of Dust TA Luft Limit
Locations Date Date Exposed Deposition mg/m?*/day
mg/m?/day (Annual
(Annual Average) a¥erans)
1 (West) 18.03.2015 08.03.2016 356 251.7 350
2 (North) 18.03.2015 08.03.2016 356 152.3 350
3 (East) 18.03.2015 08.03.2016 356 201.1 350
4 (South) 18.03.2015 08.03.2016 356 136.1 350
4.3 Conclusion

The annual average readings (Table 4.4) for all monitoring locations are below the recommended
“Technical Instructions on Air Quality Control — TA Luft’ 2002 standard guideline of 350mg/m?/day
over an annual period. The largest annual average reading of 251.7mg/m?day on the westerly
boundary location for dust deposition exists for the site over the past year.

The highest monthly reading of 163.4mg/m?/day was recorded in January on the northerly
boundary (D2) from the twelve results over the three monthly periods. A water bowser is operated
to mitigate dust in dry weather conditions. All vehicles leaving the construction areas of the site
pass through a wheel cleansing area prior to entering the local road network. A road sweeper
continual cleans site hard surfaced roads and road networks linked to the site.

1E03011183-22-RP-0053_A_01.doc Page 12 of 33

Formal Issue
Page 30



Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
M Dublin Waste to Energy Facility

|IE0311183-22-RP-0058, Issue B
GROUP PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0058
26/04/2016

5 Surface Water

A scheme for monitoring suspended solids in surface waters adjacent to the site is placed for the
construction phase of the project, as per the EIS requirements and in accordance with An Bord
Pleanala Order-29S.EF2022. Refer to Figure 2.1 in Section 2 for the monitoring locations.

5.1 Monitoring Method

Monitoring was carried out by an independent laboratory technician and overseen by the project
environmental consultant in accordance with ‘Dublin Waste to Energy - Construction Phase
Monitoring Scheme’ September 2009.

5.2 Monitoring Results

Analysis of suspended solids in surface water at the four surface water monitoring locations was
undertaken.

The suspended solids results for January to March 2016 are presented in Table 5.1.

IE03011183-22-RP-0053_A_01 doc Page 13 of 33

Formal Issue
Page 31



anss| Jeulo4
£¢ Jo ¢4 abed

20p b0V 9¥00-dM-22-€811LLOED3]

£V

144

0E

9¢

0i>

LE

9e9L B ELY0

L€ B 6V-01

05l — G460

91/£0/80

1/Bw

(9102 y2sen)
spijog
papuadsng

62

8t

0¢

€2

¥i

L

1€:11 3 ¢1-G0

5L

Ge0l- 0060

91/20/60

1/bw

(ar0z
Kienuqad)
Spljos
papuadsng

0€

5¢

01>

0l>

Gl

GZ:61 ' ¥5-90

LE€L R ECL0

02:€1-0€-60

Lo/l

/6w

(ar0z
Ksenuer)
Spilos
papuadsng

NGE'80.0¢.E5

N909.02.£5

N909.0¢.£5

N96G.0C.E5

N965.02.£G

NCE'82.02.ES

BuiypoN

20UBIBYRY
pUo

ML02021.9

MOY9.LL.9

MOY9.11.9

MOZLEL.9

MOLLZL.9

MSEYG.L1.9

Buyyseq

ELIIETCTEN]
pug

Yed ainjeN
UMOYSH|

(deap) Jaid
-jseg Aemieq

p(E0IMS

(aoepns)
1se3 Aesujey

s(colms

{daap)
1S9 Aemiey

P(ZOIMS

(aoepns)
ysepm Kemureq

s{zolms

jouueys
13ep Buijoon

(10MS

3p1L Mo

s)insoy SpIiog papuadsng — Bulioyuoyy JaJeAA 93BUNS 'S djqe ],

ajeq

sjun

uo|e307

l3jauueled

9102/v0/8¢

8600-0000-Ldy-AN3-ONd
g anss| ‘8500-d4-22-€8L 1 LEDTI
Aioe4 ABiau3g o) ajsepn uligng

pajwiy Buusaulbug edoin3 eueao)

dnNoud

Wd

Page 32



PW

GROUP

Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
Dublin Waste to Energy Facility
IE0311183-22-RP-0058, Issue B
PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0058
26/04/2016

5.3

Conclusion

In the 1% Quarter (January — March) 2016 period the suspended solids ranged from <10 — 44mg/l.
The highest level of suspended solids was recorded at the Fairway East -Pier (deep), SW(03) in
March 2016 with a result of 44mg/l. Baseline monitoring from 2010 —~ May 2015 ranged from 1 -
508magll.

Enabling works for site setup to construct the cooling water pump station commenced at end of
June 2015. Construction works of the coffer dam for the cooling water pump station commenced at
the end of July 2015. Construction of the intake channel is on-going.

During the construction period no elevated suspended solid readings were recorded when
compared against preconstruction baseline readings and previous months. The levels recorded in
1% Quarter 2016 were low levels compared to baseline monitoring from 2010 — May 2015 which
ranged from 1 - 508mg/l and the monitoring range of 2 — 300mg/| over the past year. Fluctuations
in suspended solids occur due to the intertidal area, urbanised catchment being sampled and water
traffic operating on the waterbody. Therefore variation is expected throughout all samples readings.
Fluctuations in suspended solids are common with levels recorded up to 508mg/| over the
preconstruction monitoring period. During the quarterly monitoring period no elevated suspended
solid readings were recorded compared to previous readings.

IE03011183-22-RP-0046_A_04.doc Page 15 of 33

Formal Issue

Page 33



Covanta Europe Engineering Limited

Dublin Waste to Energy Facility

IE0311183-22-RP-0058, Issue B

GROUP PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0058
26/04/2016

Appendix A
Noise Data

|IE03011183-22-RP-0046_A_04.doc Page 16 of 33
Formal Issue
Page 34



PV

GROUP

Covanta Europe Engineering Limited
Dublin Waste to Energy Facility
1E0311183-22-RP-0058, Issue B
PMG-ENV-RPT-0000-0058
26/04/2016

Table 1.1: Construction Noise Monitoring

Noise Monitoring

Location

N1 — Rehab Institute

Locations

Description

Outside front gate of Rehab, Roslyn Park

N2 — Seafort Avenue

Footpath adjacent to No. 33 Seafort Avenue

N3 — Beach Avenue

Footpath adjacent to the dividing wall of No. 10 and No. 11 Beach Avenue

N4 — Leukos Road

In front of DCC recycling facility

N5 — Pigeon House Road

Footpath immediately in front of the Coastguard Cottages

N6 — Walkway (Irishtown
Nature Reserve)

Walkway south of the site connecting Sean Moore Park and Irishtown Nature
Reserve

N7 — Western Site Boundary

Midway on the western site boundary

N8 — Northern Site Boundary

Midway on the northern site boundary

N9 - Eastern Site Boundary

Midway on the eastern site boundary

N10 - Southern Site Boundary

Midway on the southern site boundary

IE03011183-22-RP-0046_A_04 doc

Page 17 of 33
Formal Issue

Page 35



anss| |ewoy

€€ Jo g1 abed 20p' 0"V 9+00-d¥-22-€81 L L0E03I

Buneisado i
wawidinba Bulll| SldoUI PUE SSUBID - | g.g5 | yzg | gEs | 66 | 8602 | OF uselsaM IN ferae
uofe|jejsul [eslueydaWw [eulalu] - enuef Yyiso
_ %:ﬁ__wu o JUB|d JUSW]Eal] JOJEMBISEAA WO WNH -
uoneyelsul Buippe|) - . . . . . 9102
o] 1414 L S 0 u8)s9, 0
. L 6 €e 8'9 96’6l £ M 1\ Kienuer yso
sjeusjew yum Buiauie sxonu] - 9107
1adaams peoy - 6L 0e9 6'8.2 889 €0'GlL og uiayinos OLN Aienuer yiso
UONE|[|BISUI YIOMULIOA -
uocne||esul Jeqay - . . . . . 91L0¢
ula)se
| e —— gelL £v9 '8 8'69 Slvl o€ jseq 6N Aienuer Uyiso
‘ >v:ﬂ__nmvo_b a |eusjew Bupeaeoxs 18661 -
uonejelsul Juswdinba [eoiueyss - £°69 €29 86. 685 ccel (0} UIsyuoN 8N Em:w%wémo
uoIDaIa |99)S -
punoib uo Bunelado jue|d a|IdO - . . . . . 9102
’ 8'69 1’85 2.8 8'G9 evlL (01 uIa1s3 Y
sjeusjew Buyl saues) - M N Aenuepr Yiso

suonIpuon (viap  (v)ap @mu (v)ap (uiw) uoRE20T ‘ON
19UIE3M $32.n0g 3sION |ed1dulid 1 06V " Al uoyeing  Aiepunog  UOWEIOT]

s)insay Bulioyuoyy asION Alenuer :panuijuo) g'L djgeL

910¢2/¥0/9¢
8500-0000-Ld¥-ANI-OWd dNOoHD

g anss| '8500-d¥-22-€8L LLEDII
Apnjioe4 ABiau3 o) aysepn ugng E
pajwi Buusauibuz adosng ejueaod

Page 36



anss| [ewuog

€€ Jo 61 abed 20p'p0 v 9¥00-d¥-2Z-€81 }L0E03I
’ €6 8/ 8'vS S0'eC o€ uiayinos OLN 2L
6°GS 14 fenuer vl
. . . . . 9l0c
€19 8'/S 8'6. 865 6e'€e 013 uI3Isapi IN fsenuer  pl
‘azaalg Bunelado W
ajelapopy ‘A juswdinba Buiyl| s|1Igow pue sauel) - -
uoneyelsu; buippel) - 9'vs L 6% LS. £vS 91’61 ot uisyinos OLN fienuer L
i
JUB|d JuBW)Eal] JOJEMB)SEAA WO WNH -
9 |9a1s -
UOWRIS RS | .5 | gog | L | 695 | 956L | OE welsam IN femer L
uone|jesul Juswdinba [esjueyosiy - w
sjeuajew yum Buialue syoni| - 9L0Z
UONE|EISUI YJOMWWLIOS - 7'v9 19§ 128 ¥'L9 124" 0€ ulayjnos OLN Kienuer pl
uone||ejsul Jeqay -
uonoa13 Buipjoyeos - . . . . . 9iloe
LTl G99 8'Z8 00. LE'SL o€ ulgiseq 6N
_ ‘ Bunesado juawdinba Bunyl| ajIqoN - Aenuer p1
wien '1egn
s|eusjew buny seuel) - 9102
uoile|eisul Juawdinbo |esiueyosiy - 2’89 8'.G L'v8 L'v9 9091 0E WIBULoN 8N feenuer p|
Bunesado sdwnd aj@210u0) - ¢
uonoale |99)g - . . . . . 91L0¢
) 8'8. 8'69 5’68 [A*7A gL'yl 0]> UISISSAA LN
|eusyew Buneaeoxs 18661q - Aenuer  pi

suoRipuoy
EETNLCEY VY

$924n0g 3s|oN [edidulid

(v)ap
3(4

(v)ap
06V

(v)ap
me(J

(v)gp
wo(J

{uiw)

uoneing
s)nsay bBuliojuojy asioN Alenuep :panuiuod Z'y ajgeL

uones0T

Aepunog

‘ON

uoI}eo0T

9102/¥0/9¢

8500-0000-1d¥-ANI-ONd

g anss| '8500-dy-¢Z-€81 L L£03I
Aynoe4 ABiau3 o) aysepn wiigng
pajiwn Buuaauibug adoing glueAOD

dNOYY

Wd

Page 37



anssj jeulog

£€ Jo 0z abed 20p $0 "V 9¥00-d¥H-Z2-€81 1 L0E03|
Bunelado 1adesms peoy - 89 LS 9'8. £'G9 c1 4% (0] wayinos OIN 910z Menuep u8¢
‘azealq uone||eIsul YIOMLUIIOS -
9}eIopON / leuajew Buneneoxs 1866IQ - | oy, L°29 0'L6 VeL | veel 0 wis)ses 6N 910¢ Aenuer 8z
wbis S)JOM UOIE||BISUI |EDIUBYOBW [BUISIU| -
‘Apnoig ‘g aysuo Bunesado jue|d ajiqop - r47) 6.5 0.8 20L | S¥LL 0g UJBYHON 8N g10g Aenuer 82
uonoale [88)s -
OC_HN._OQO dMan _@C_«N._QQO mwcm._o - LYl Lv9 806 9L €0'Ll [0}% UlS)sapn IN 910¢ ENDCN—‘ EwN
Bunesado )
aZsald uCOEQ_DUQ mc_t__ 8(IqoW pue sauel) - L'€S L0S 66 899 SL'Le o€ wsyinog OLN 910¢ Aenuer U:NN
ajelapol /
SYJOM UONE|BJSUI [EOIUBYDBW [EUIBU| -
_ %w%wm_ao uone|(ejsul Buipper) -
JUE|d JUaW)eal| JOJEMBISEAA WOY) WNH - 9'99 €€s €8/ 968 9g'i¢e 0¢ WIB)SBAA IN 910z Aenuer |,z
Buijelado jedeems peoy - 9’69 8'99 €08 0'€9 VA" 0e uisyinog OLN 910z Aenuep pucC
uone||eIsul YIOMLUIOS -
QN_NMMW,_ ) |eusjew Buneneoxe 1ebBIg - | |4 929 888 9¢L | ¥O'LL o¢ wajse3 6N 910¢ Aenuer 2z
WIS SHIOM UOIJE||B}SUI [EDIUBYOBW [BUISIY] -
‘Rpnojn ‘Aug aysuo Bunesado jue(d a|Iqo - 8’89 LSS [AYA 699 6101 o€ UIByHON 8N 910z Menuer 2z
uoinoale [28)S -
Bunessdo gMIIN ‘Bunesedo seuesn - | V'L 699 g8'/8 Sv. | Sv60 o uIo)SaM IN 910z Atenuer 2z

(v)ap (v)ap (v)Jap  (v)ap "ON

uo1eo0T

suompuoy 0] 061 LA S A Asepunog

UOI}E207]
SEINLETY $921N0S 3sION [ediduld

synsay Bulojiuoyy 8sION Alenuep ;panuiuo) Z'y 8jqel

9102/¥0/92
8500-0000-LdY-ANT-ONd dNOo¥Y

d anss| '8500-dy-22-€811 LE0TI
Ayoe4 ABiau3z o} ajsepn ulgng E
papwi Buuasuibug adoing EjueA0D

Page 38



anss| [ewl04

€€ 4o 1 abed 20p'v0” Y 9¥00-dy-2Z-£81 | LOEOI
Bunesado 910z
juswdinba Buiyl| 8)1goWw pue ssuel) - 8'LS 6'8¥ 6'8L 8'99 Sl'ie o€ uisynos OLN Aleniged W0
‘wien uofje||elsul [BalUBYDSW [BUIB]| -
Apno|n ‘g JUB|d JuBW}eal] JBJEMB)SBAA WOJ) WNH - 656 €18 clg /G 502z 0e IBISaM IN ame Mom
uone|elsul buippe|) - q94 Yo
. . . . . gloc
c'89 6'6S V6 6'S9 0sclL o€ uisyinos OIN Kieniged Ywo
s|euajew yyum Buialie syonu] - . . . . . 9L0¢
: : uia)se
o 6'LL ¥'q9 S'€6 vlL oLzl o€ 1SE3 6N Aieniga4 upo
mﬂwmwm__of\w__om |eusjew Buneaeoxs Jabbiq -
uone|[ejsul Juswdinba jeajueyosW [BUISIU| - €19 0'9s 6'18 2’69 ve'LL o] UIByuoN 8N Bm:%nr% H_NEvo
punoib6 uo Bunesado jue|d 3|Iqop -
s|euajew Buyl| seuel) - . . . . . 910¢
gL S'L9 ' ¥8 00L ov'ol o] LISV IN
uoIj0aIa |99)8 - Aenigad Yo

suofipuo) (v)ap (viap A,Nvmu Awwmv (urw) uo11e207 ‘ON
FETGLETT saoInog asioN [ediouLid A 06Vl Wy v uoneIng uoeI07]

synsay buuojuol asIoN Alenigad :penunuod Z'L d|qelL

9102/¥0/9¢
8500-0000-Ld¥-AN3-OWd
g anss| '8500-d¥y-2Z-€8L LLEOTI dNOHYD

Ayoe4 ABiau3 o) ajsepp uliang S‘Q
paywny 6uuaauwbug adosng gjueaod

Page 39



anss| jewiod
€€ Jo zz abed 20p'v0" Y 9v00-dy-¢Z-€81 L LOEO3

d.LMAM Woyy asiou Bulwwny - . ) ) ) )
s|euaiew ypm BuiaLle syoni) - gL 69 LAK v'eo ¢cce0 ge WSLENos e glLog Aenigad uiLL
Jadaams peoy -
‘sep|S JBs|D |eusjew Buneaeoxs JabBIq - R ZA S¢L G'96 6L | 6VLL (415 uls)sey 6N 910z Aenigaq Uil
‘wies '‘Ag uonejelsul Juawdinba |[esiueyospy jeusiu] -
uoioall 988 -
punoub uo Bupesado jueid (GO - velL L9 926 S0/ ¥Z oL (01 uisisspA LN 9l0z Aenugad Uil |
Bunyeg Boq -
‘Apnoid asiou Buibue
! 16ueq punoibxoeq - anasay
Ajree : : : : : Aenigs
.EF ._ﬂh_m_o 2510 TN PUno! Yoeg - €99 (A4S €6 0'G6S €€l 8]5 aIneN 9N 9102 gsd uiilL
dLA Woyj asiou Buiwwng -
) uoieoo| Buuoyuow
Apno|o 9sI0U 8y} JB 3jgIpne aSI0U UOIJonJisuod oN -
b__m_tmn_ Buissed Jed) - L'v9 6'vS 208 v'L9 Lzel 0g sH uoabid SN 910z Menugad L1
‘g ‘'wieg ’
Hod uljgn( woJj asiou aueld punoibyoeq -
679 1'95 608 | Lz9 | SSEL oe f— N 910z Atenigad | |
soyna u
‘Apno|n veL LS G'o8 6'89 0c9l o€ 9AY Yyosag €N gL0z Menigag L1
Alensed
‘A ‘wie . . . . . anusAay
a wied uoneoo) Bupoyuows | 944 1S S8 8.9 | 0TSl o€ e N 910z Aenigag L1
asiou Aue Je 9|qipne asiou UoIoNIISUod ON -
JIjeJ} PEOJ JUBJSISUOY) - L'69 899 8'v8 999 12°R°1" (0] qeyay LN 910z Aenigad wbl

suoRIpuo) (viap (viap (viap  (vlap (urw) uole20T ‘ON

13yjeap s324nog asioN jedidutid A 06V LA A uoieing LORESC]
s)nsay Buloyuoy asIoN Alenigad :panunuo) Z'4 d|qeL

9102/v0/9¢
8500-0000-LdY-ANT-ONd dNOoY¥Y

g anss| '8500-dy-22-€811 LE03I
Ayioed ABiau3z o) S1seAA UIlgna E
paywi Buueasuibug adoin3 gjueao)

Page 40



anss| [euuoy

€€ Jo £2 abed 20p'¥0”V 9¥00-d¥-2Z-€81 1 10€03I
Bunesado _
. Juswdinbs Bupyll SIGoW P SSUBID - | ¢pg 105 | zi8 | 95 | 80T o€ weunos | OLN

_Ehm o_wc UOI}E||E}SUI [EOIUBYDBW [BUIBIY] - 910z Aeniged uigl
52 d JUB|d JuBWIEa.| JBIBMB)SBAA WO WNH -

uone)eisul Buippe|d - 8'9S 6°0S 8'6. 689 TN (0} UIBISapMA LN 910z Aenigad yiglL
s|eusjew yum Buiauie sy oniy -

punoib uo Bunesado yue(d 8|Iqo - 9¢c. 9'.S 1'¢6 9'69 SGCl o€ uisyinos OLN

910z Aienigad uigL
|eusjew Buneaeoxs 1abbiq -

. uogejlelsul uswdinba [EOIUEUOS [BUIBIL] - | g-gy Tve | 628 | v8e | Thzl og wajse3 6N 910¢ Aenigad yigl
‘wien kg s|euajew Buyl| ssuel) -

uone|jeisul Bunoa( - 8¢9 G'9S 1'S8 509 9€’L1 (0] UlByloN 8N 910z Aenugad gL
uone|ejsul Buippe| -

LUoRoaIs (89S - co8 €'.9 6'v8 g9/ LO'LL o¢ uwie)sapp IN 910z Aenigad gL

8¢S 89y €92 Gg'es T4 o€ wsuinos OLN 910z Aenugad YL L

dLMM wioy asiou Buluwny - 928 1°0G 66 8¢S 0L°00 o€ UI8}Sapn IN 9l0c¢ Aienigad Uizl
azaalg S)J0M UOHE||E}SUI [EDIUBLIBW |EUIBU| -

wbiys ‘g aysuo Bunesado jueld apgow - 8vs €06 622 896G 8€°0C (015 uisyjnos OIN 910z AMenigad YL
uonoasa Buippe|d pue |99)S -

mc_wm._mao dM3IN .mC_um.hmao sauelq - 6'GS 805 8°6L €99 g¢'lc (8] UIB}Sapp LN 9102 >._N3._D®n_ L

Asmu Asmn Asmvzvmu .oz
suonipuon obv 06Y1 XEWY] bav— (uw) ATl 10138207
PETLETTY $324N0g 3SION |edIdulid uoneing ;

s)nsay Buuojuoyy osSION Alenigad :panunuol Z'} alqel

9102/¥0/9¢
8500-0000-LdY-AN3-OWd
g anss| '8500-d¥-22-€81 LLE0TI dNOoYO

Anjioe4 ABiauz o) ajsepn wqnQ
paywr Buusswbu3z adoin3 ejueao)

Page 41



anss| [euwso4

€€ Jo vz abed 20p'¥0° Y 9P00-d¥-2Z-€81LLOE03

dLMM woy asiou Buiwwny -

SHJOM UOHEB}[EISUI [EDIUBUDSW |EUIBIU| - £es esy ¢l Les esle o€ uisyinos OIN gl10¢ Aenigaq yisg
;bwwo__wo uoioals Buippeo pue |29)8 - . . ) . ‘

Bunesado JMIW ‘Buneisdo seuel) - vs [AVA4 208 6'lS 6c'ee (01 Lwialsapi IN 910z Aenigad uisz

s|elalew yum BuiaLle syonuy -
punoib uo Buneiado yueid sjqopy - 9'tL 6'6S (A ] 6¢cL L1260 o€ uisyinog OLN 910z Aleniaed yisz

Jjeusjew Buneaeoxs 1ab6iq -
uone||eysul Juawdinba [eojueyoS| |BUISIU| - oLL 6'99 18l ¥'69 9g' L1 o€ ulsisey 6N 910z fenigad Yyisz

_E_L_Mw_wco sjeuajew Buiyl ssues) -
uone|eysut Supoaq - G'6G 9.6 8'L6 L'€9 Le0L o€ uJaypuoN 8N 910z Menigad yige

uonejelsul Buippe|d -
uonoRIS (931G - 6'69 1’09 YAVA:} 9'99 19'60 0¢ UI9ISaM IN 910z AMenigad yisg

(v)ap (v)ap (v)ap  (v)ap "ON
suoiIpuod oLy 06V xeWy] bay-] (uiw) LOREN uonesoT
J1ayieapA $921n0g 3SION |edioulid uoijeing 2

synsoy Buuojuopy asioN Alenigad :panunuo) Z'L aljgel

9102/¥0/92
8500-0000-LdY-ANT-ONd dNOH YD

g anss| '8500-dy-¢2-e8LL1€03l
Ajjioe4 ABiau3z 0y a1sepA uiigng E
papwi BuaauiBbug adoing eluesnd

Page 42



anss| [ewuo4

€€ Jo 52 abed 30p" b0V 9¥00-d¥-22-€81L L 10E03I
Buyeiado
juswdinba Buiyy) aiqow pue ssuel) -
UORE||EISUI [EDILELOBW [BUISIU] - L'€S cly €6/ 8'€S 8000 0gE ulsyinos OLN 9102 YdleN uivyo
_‘_mM_%wcn_ JuB|d JUSWeal] ISJEMIISEAA WOJ) WNH -
uone(iesul buippe|) -
uoiaIB [881S - g'ss L'0S 1’8 8'GS geee o€ IIEIETYY IN 9102 USIEI PIEO
Buneiado
juswdinba Buiylj ajiqow pue ssuel) -
UOHE[EISUI [EOIUBLIDL [EUIBIY - LSS L'6¥ 692 €68 T4 oE ulsyinos OLN 910¢ Udley pieo
.mmww“nmu_ ﬁﬂ__w UE|d JUBWIEaI] JSJEMA]SEAN WOl WNH -
uone|ielsul buippe|d -
uoIBI [98IS - 1'8G ] 8'6. 6'6S oL’ie (0} UIBIS3pA IN 9102 U2Jep pICo
JuB|d JUSLUED | JOJEMSISEAA WOJ) WNH -
sieuslew yym Bune SUL- | zg9 | po9 | ves | €99 | LTl oe weynos | OIN I
Jadoams peoy -
|eusiew Bupeaeoxa 1ab61Q -
E%_.q.wmm%m_o uonejfe}sul Juswdinbs ealueyosw feussiu| - | £ 69 859 618 | 789 | vTvl o€ uslses 6N 910Z YIEN PIEO
>__mmtmn_ ‘fia punoJb uo Buneiado jueid a|1qo - . . . . .
sjeusjew Buny) seuel) - 8'89 LcS 9'LL 099 acel (018 UuiayyoN 8N 910¢ YoJep pPIED
Buiyoap jo uonejelsu| -
1’69 9'9¢ 198 ¥'99 [A°RA4% 0e UIBISSAA IN 910z UaJeN pIE0

suoijipuoy
Jayjeapn

uonoais (8913 -

$924n0G 3sioN |edioulid

(v)ap

ordJ

(v)ap
06V

(v)ap
XeWY]

(v)ap

cm<J

(uw)
uonelng

uoEd0T

‘ON
Uuol3ed07]

synsay buLojiuopy asION Alenigad ;penunuo) Z'L alqel

9102/v0/9¢

8500-0000-Ld4-ANI-ONd

g anss| '8500-d4-22-€814 LEO3I
Aypoe4 ABiau3 o} ajsep ulang
payiwi Buuaauibug adoing EjuEADD

dnNodv

Wd

Page 43



anssj jeuoy

£¢ 40 92 abed 20p'v0" Y 9¥00-dy-22-€84 11003l
Bunesado
juawdinba Buly)| 2jigow pue ssuei) - ) ) ) ) ]

e e T €65 1'0S 8.L 6%S | €g1e 4] ulayinog OLN 910c Ul oL
_EM_NOm_wLD JUB|d JUSWIES]] ISIEMBISEAA WO WNH -
uoneyielsul Buippe|D -

uoKoBIB [981S - 8'6S L'9g 8'6L L'09 ] A4 o€ ui)sapn LN 910z Y2JelN W01
dLAVW woyy asiou Buiwwny -

s|euajew ypm Buiaiue syonu] - Vil §19 v'se £89 8501 0E uisyinos OiN 910¢ Yalen yiot
Jadaams peoy -

) uone|elsul Juawdinba [eolueyOs| [BUISIU) - ¥'69 €69 6'68 9'/9 A4S o€ uisyseq 6N 9102 YaJe uioL
_»h___mw_mmuqm_% s|eusjew buny sauel) -

’ uonejjelsul Bunpa( - 9'6S G'/S ¥'9. ¢'8S el (0 WIayUoON 8N 910z udJen yiot
uoi08I9 9918 -

punoi6 uo Buneiado Jueld ajIGop - €L 8'8G 208 029 LELL (014 uiaisspi IN 910¢ uoJep uioL

SUOI}IPUOD (v)ap (v)ap (v)ap  (v)ap ) uoRES0T ‘ON

13U1EDAN $924n0g asioN |edidulid ke 06V ALRE] A uoneing uoneacT
s)nsay BuLIOUON 8SION YdJe\ panupuo) Z't ajqel

9L02/v0/9C
8500-0000-LdY-AN3-OWd dNOoHYd

g anss| '8500-dy-2¢-€8L L1E03I
Aypioe4 ABisuz o} sisepn wqnQ E
paywi Bunasuwibug adoing ejueA0)

Page 44



anss| [ew04

€€ Jo 22 abed 20p'¥0” Y 9¥00-d¥-22-€8LLLOCOI
Bunesado
yuawdinba Buiyl sjlgow pue sauel) -
— UONE||EISUI [EDIUBYOSL [BUIBIU| - (WA} L'€S 128 1'6G GSL0c o€ uisyinos OLN 9102 Ydie|y ygl
wbis JuB|d JuBW)Bal] JS}EMSISEAA WO WNH - |
‘Apno|9 ‘lig uone|ejsul Buippe|d - |
uolnjoala |89)S - 8'09 9.8 6'L8 8'¢9 §G0¢ o€ LISISapA IN 910Z yole uigL
€0L 0'8S 9'L8 1'29 oevl 0¢ uisyinog OLN 910¢ YaJeN yigL
dLAMM woyy esiou Bunwwny - ¥'89 6'¥9 8'/8 8'69 Si9lL o€ ujsjse] 6N 910¢ ydlely Yol
mnw\ﬂ:m SHJOM UOIB||EISUI |EDILUBYOBW [RUISIU| -
fona A oysuo Bunesedo ueid siqo - | 285 | VES | €6L | €95 | O¥SL o¢ WiSUYION 8N 9102 UoIBIN UIgL
uonoals Buippelo pue |991g -
Bunesado Jmaw 'Buigessdo sauel) - [A7A G'L9 6'98 0’89 90'SlL (0% uisisapi LN 91L0C udiey yigl

(v)ap (v)ap (vl|ap  (v)gp ‘ON
suonipuod 04v] 06Vl XENY] bay (urw) enad] uoned0T]
19y3eapn $321n0g asIoN |edioulid uoleing ;

s)nsay Buuoyuopy SSION YaIB :panuijuo) g°L alqel

910¢2/v0/9¢
8500-0000-LdY-AN3-ONd
g anss| '8500-d¥-2¢-€81 1 1€03) dNOHY

Apjioe4 ABiau3l o) a)seap wang *
pajwi Buuasuwbug adoin3 ejueAn)

Page 45



anss) jeuuoy
£¢ Jo gz abegd 20p'$0 vV 9¥00-d¥-2Z-€81110€03l

dLMM woyy asiou Bulwwny -
SIEUSIEW UM BUIALLE DML~ | 7 1'65 668 | 129 | zz60 0g weyINog OLN | 90T Uosen puze
Jadeams peoy -
uonejesul Juswdinba |esjuBYOS [BUIBIU] -
Apnoig sleusiew buyy seuesd - | gqy 1S9 6°€8 889 | OL}L (3 uieises 6N 910Z UoJe puzz
‘'we '‘fug uonejeisul buoaq -
uonoale |881S - €95 L'LS ¥'Z8 9vS fA0]2 o€ UIBYLON 8N 910¢ uoJew puze
punoib uo Bunesado jue|d ajlqo -
Buneaeaxs siabbiq - 189 ¥'8S L'l8 0€9 85°60 o€ UIB)SOM IN 9102 Yolepy puze
. . ; . . anesasy 910z Udlep pugeg
6'¢S S8y g8 €¢S 90°7¢cL oe aineN 9N
uocfeoo| Buuojuow
2SI0U 3y} Je 9jqIpNe 9SIoU UONIONJISUOD ON - . . . . .
Buissed JeJ - €£¢9 1¢s 0’88 509 Geel 0t sH uosbid SN 9102 Y21ey puze
‘Apno|D Hod uligng woulj asiou aueld punoibyoeg -
Aened
‘g ‘wie 5 . . . . peoy
a weg €9 £'GS 0'/8 [ArA®) 801l o€ soyna YN 9102 UdIe puge
¥'L9 €L 626 6'€l ¢e9l o€ BAY Yyoaeg EN 910¢ Uoiew puce
. . . . . anuaAy
uoneso] BuLoUOW 9'€9 6vvy L9L 009 Ev'GlL (01 vojess ¢N 910¢ UdJep puge
asiou Aue e a|qipne 9SI0U UOJoNJ)Suod oN -
OljEJ} PEOJ JUBISISUOD - 189 G'ES 508 2's9 90'Gt o€ qeysy IN 910¢ YdJe puze

(viap  (vigp  (viap  (v)gp uo1je20] ‘ON

(ujw) uoi3ed07]

suonipuon oLy’ XEWY! bay
SEINLETYY $92.n0g asioN |ediound L 06Vl g L uoneing

s)nsoy Buuoyuo 8SION Y2Jepy panuiuo) Z'L dlqel

9102/v0/9¢
8500-0000-Ldd-ANI-ONd dnNOodYo

g anss| '8500-d¥-2¢Z-€81 L LEDTI
Appoe4 ABisug o} ajsepn uligng
pajiwn Buuaauibug adosn3 ejueAc)

Page 46



anss| [euo4 -
£¢ Jo 62 abed J0p'$0 V 9900-du-22-€8LL1L0E0T

JUB|d JUSWIEal | JBJEMB]ISEAA WO WNH -

Bunesado . ) ) . .
>UDO_O uCOEQSU@ mc_t__ m__QOE nqu WQCN._O = m GG £l N 8/ w 2% 12°] MN 0€ C._mr_uDOw OrZ O—.ON CO._NS_ UCNN

‘wien ‘Aag uoIjE||EISUI [EDIUBLORW [BUIBJU| -
o)

uonoalIa 9918 -
uoneesul Buppern - | 89 L'ES 8'9/ 109 | Sz 0 uselsen IN 910Z YdJBIN PUZZ

ue|d Juawilesal] JIJeMB3ISEAA WOl WNH -

Bunesado ) . _ ) )
>UDO_O uCOEQ_DUm mc_t__ 0__908 pue sauel) - 8'GG jowrde] 86/ €98 gcoc Om ulsyinos OLN 910¢ CU._N_Z pugze

‘wien ‘g UONE{BISUI [B2IUBLDW [BUIB}U| -

uoloale 193]S -
uone|ielsul BUIppelD - : €28 6'8L se9 | 901z o€ ITEESTYY IN 910Z YoJeN puzz

(uw)  uonesoT o

SuolIpuUOY uoiE20T

SEINLETYY $921N0g 3sioN |ediduiid uoneang

synsay BuLIOUON 8SION YOIEep panunuod Z') 3|qel

9102/¥0/92
8500-0000-1d¥-ANF-OWd dNOUYD

g anss| '8500-d¥-¢2-€81 1 1€03|
Aupoed ABiaug o) aysepn ullang E
paywir Buuasuibug adoin3 gluer0)

Page 47



anss| |ew.oy _
£€ o ¢ abed 20p'v0 V 9¥00-dY-2Z-€8L1L0E03!

JUE|d JUBWIEal] J3)BMBJSEAA WO WNH -

Bunesado ) . . ) .
>UDO_O MCOEQ_JUQ mC_t__ a|lgow pue sauel) - 109 €'G6S L'6L 129 L1261 [0}% wiayjnos OLN 910¢ Ydlely yioe

‘wien ‘Ag uone||ejsuUl [edlueyos W [eulau| -

uolald 19918 -
uoneyesul Buippeg - | €19 €85 8L | €59 | 956} oe wielsoMm IN 910Z U1 YI0E

Bupeaeoxa s1abb61q -

dLNMM woyy asiou Bulwwny -
s|elajew ypm Buialie syonly -
Jadaams peoy - |

9. 9'€9 Z'68 9¢l | 8e'LlL 0g uiayinos OLN 910¢ YdIieN yioe

Apno|o
Aileied uonej|elsul uswdinbs [eOlUBYOB [BUSBII - | -7/ €65 9'€0l L. | og€l o weyse3 6N 9102 YoIBIN LHOE
‘azaslg sjeusjew Buny sauel) -
weis ‘Aia uonejelsul Bunoea - | 65 €15 6'18 §95 | 152l > UIBYHON 8N 9107 UdJEIN UI0E
uonjoaJ8 99§ -

UCDOH@ uo DC_wN._WQO uCN_Q BIqO - £°99 O F@ S'¥8 @.V@ VrNF Om C.._muwm>> NZ 910¢ Uoiey _._uom

(viap (v)ap (v)ap uonesoT ‘ON U

(utw) 01}8207

SUONIPUOD oLy XeWy
SEINTETY $92.n0S 3sION |edioutld i 544l g uoneang

s)nsoy BuuoyuO BSION YdIel panuiuod Z'| dqel

9102/¥0/92
8500-0000-Ldd-ANI-ONd
g anss| 'g500-dy-2¢-€8 41 LE0TI dNOYY

Aupoe4 ABsau3 o} ajsepn uilgng E
pajwi Buusauibug adoing ejueao)

Page 48



anss| [ewo4

£¢ Jo 1§ abed 20p'¥0" V¥ 9¥00-d¥-2Z-€811L0E03I

8 £€ Ve SE ] 6L yx4q" L¥6 0.8 02 9ZL wayinog gELL 9102/€0/0€
0t 0t ol Go8 006 454 99 WI9)SaAA |1 4%4" 9102/€£0/0€
|44 6C L€ 1€ oL 161 lCLL Ly6 0.8 °14 W] wayinog 2260 9102/€0/22
px4 yx4 0L G998 006 14 0'€9 Wa}Sap\ 85-60 910c/e0/ec
o 2 145 €€ oL L6l yr41s L¥6 0.8 0€ 129 uwayinog 0e-vL 9102/€0/91
e €€ 0l Go8 006 0E 0'89 Wwajssp 90:Gl 9102/€0/91
)44 62 0g L€ [+] 6L 21 L¥6 0.8 02 1’89 wayinog 85.01 9102/£0/0L
€€ [4 0L Go8 006 0€ 0.9 UIB)SaM LELL 9102/£0/0L
0s e 9 9€ 0L L6l 1z L6 0.8 0S €99 wayinog l1Cl 9102/£0/E0
6C 8¢ 0ol GO8 006 0c 98 WIBISaAN [4: 543 9102/€0/€0
214 £€ e Gg 118 L6L 1CLY L¥6 0.8 4 6CL uayinog 12:60 9102/20/52
9Z 92 [+]8 Go8 006 Sl 9'99 Wia)sapy 1560 9102/20/S¢
54 9€ LE 8¢ 0l L6 ZL) L¥6 0.8 44 969 wayinosg G52l 9102/20/8L
9€ o€ 0l Go8 006 Sl G9L WI3)SaMA 10:LL 9102/20/81
0S e 9€ £ 018 L6l yx4q" L¥6 0.8 ot ¥'89 wayinog 2260 9102/20/L1
€€ [4 0L G598 006 02 S0L WB1SaM vZ.0t 9102/20/L L
JA4 145 £€ 14 [4]8 161 px41% L¥6 0.8 4] 4 669 uayinog 0scl 9L02/20/v0
143 e 0L G98 006 14 00 Wwia)sap oy 0L 9102/20/$0
(44 62 0g L€ oL 161 l2LL L¥6 0.8 0t £'69 wayinosg alpl 9102/10/82
L€ 1€ 0l Go8 006 Sl 9'LL WIBISaM e0:L1 9102/10/82
oF 3% £E £e 0L 161 yx4q" L6 0.8 0S5 0'€9 wayinog A" 9102/10/22
LE g€ 0l G98 006 0C SviL WI)SaAA Sv.60 9102/10/22
[0):4 14 a¢ lC 0L 161 yx4q" L6 0.8 0 vl wayinos yS-vL 9102/10/¥L
GE GE 4] 598 006 Sl C'SL Wajssp\ ell 9L02/L0/¥L
:14 [43 Ve GE 4] 6L yx4q" L¥6 0.8 0 889 uwayinog €061 9102/10/50
82 8¢ 0l 598 006 02 8'69 Wwia)sap evll 9102/10/S0

Med Yed

nmowwmm.___n_o: ameN | soine | yoeeqg | uojess mh““wmy“__ nw_oww_”mox aimeN | sowneq | yoeag | uoess wﬁ“m“ﬁh_
UMOIYsL} UMOJYSL}

(W) uoneao|
vigp () 32IN0S 9SIoU pue D
(R99))
juswisnipe e uoneoso| BuonLow
UOIBOO0| BOINOS 3SI0U pue Uo[ed0| Jojdadal usaamMiag sauelsig
Busalag Arepunoq

UBSBMIaG BOUB)SIJ  BSION

Asepunog
als

3510N) S101da0a1 aARISUBS }S3S0|D JB [nal 8SION PaleInodED

{Z'2 4 uonoag) asioN:| Yed — sos uado pue uoloN.ISuod
UO [0JJUOD UOHEBIGIA PUEB 8SI0U 10} 821joeid JO 9p0oD #L0Z L V+:600Z:1L-8225 SA). Slinsay Buliojiuopy uole|ndjed [9As7 8sIoN swnfeq yalep - Aienuer :g°y ajqel

9102/¥0/9¢
8500-0000-1d¥-ANI-OWd dNOHYO

g anss) 'g500-dy-2Z-€8L L1€03|
Ayoe4 ABiau] o) aseAA WIGNG *
papwi BuussuiBug adoing gluesod

Page 49



anss| [euuo4

¢ jo z¢ abed 20p'¥0 vV 9v00-d¥-22-€8LLLOE0TI
[24 82 og 0¢ oL L6l 2Ll L6 0.8 ov 1z9 |wauymog| 126l 9102/£0/0E
0¢ 62 0l 598 006 Sz £69 | weisam | 9561 9102/£0/0€
ot [Z4 9z 9z [ 161 [ZL) L6 0.8 0s £'95 |waumos | 6202 9102/£0/22
82 12 0l 598 006 ['T4 g9 | wsaisam | 90:12 9102/£0/22
134 /Z 62 62 04 161 1211 L6 0.8 05 1’66 |wauinos | glLo2 9102/£0/91
i3 62 0l 598 006 0¢ 8'c9 | waysam | 6502 9102/£0/9}
8¢ £2 [Z4 Y4 [ 161 /2L L6 0.8 0$ %G |waumos | €€Z 9102/£0/0}
9z 9z [ Go8 006 0¢ 109 | weisam | gLz 9102/£0/0}
6€ £2 Y4 4 oL L6l 1211 L6 0.8 05 g6 |waumos| &z0Z 9102/£0/£0
[74 [22 [ 598 006 4 665 | woisam | oLLz 9102/£0/£0
[ 8l 0z 0z 04 161 /ZLL L6 0.8 [\ 1z6  |waymos | g5z 9102/20/S2
8l Ll oL g98 006 0¢ 616 | weisam | 622 9102/20/5T
8¢ £2 [74 T4 oL 161 1211 L6 0.8 ov 595 |wauymos| sc0z 9102/20/8L
14 ¥Z 0l 598 006 0g 685 | weisam | szig 9102/20/81
L€ 44 £2 [Z4 0L 161 /ZLL L6 0/8 ov 865 |wauinog | Bgi0zZ 91L02/20/LL
[£4 [44 04 go8 006 0¢ £9s |weisam | sziie 91L02/20/11
[:13 [ [24 T4 04 16l /ZLL L6 0.8 ov 895 [wauymog| iz 9102/20/%0
£C £2 04 598 006 0¢ g6 | weisam | so:22 9102/20/¥0
ov sz 9z iz 0L 161 /2L L6 0.8 0S 895 |waumos| silz 9102/1L0/22
14 14 oL 598 006 0¢ 965 | waisam | 952 9102/10/22
8€ [44 [24 [Z4 oL 161 2L L6 0.8 05 eps |woynos | oiisl 9102/10/7L
T4 Y4 oL go8 006 ov 695 |wsaisam | o956l 9102/10/7L
St 62 Le ze 0L 161 /ZLL L6 0/8 09 665 |wauymog| 8e0Z 9102/10/50
14 Y4 04 598 006 ov 895 | waisom | 9s:6) 9102/10/50
pyasnoy | Hed syl py asnoy | Fed anmsy
w0abiy ameN | soynal | yoesg | pajess qeusy uoablg ainieN | sojynaq | yoeeg | wojeas qeysy
UMOJYSU| umoysu|

W) uoneao| {ur
\'f (vigp ; 32IN0S 3SI0U PUE Qg bae

fui og baeT) (v)gp [381] Jusunsnipe UONRo0} BULOYILOW
Alepunog |ana
usamjaq aouelsig  SSION

Aepunog

3SION] $401dB0381 SARISUDS 1S9S0(D 1B |ana| asION pajeinole UO1B20] 32IN0S BSIOU puUB UOIEJ0| J0Id80ai Ussam]ag aoueisig
! Buiuaaing

(z'Z 4 uonoag) asIoN:| Hed — salis uado pue UoHONIJSUOD UO |0JJUOD UoHBIGIA pue Ssiou
104 donoeid JO 8poD) ¥1.0Z:LY+:600Z:L-8225 Sd)., Synsay Buliojiuoyy Uoiendjed [9AS] 8SIoU JoquBAoN 8sIoN i) Buluaag yosep - Alenuer ;psnuiuo) :¢°| djqel

9102/+0/9¢
8500-0000-1d4-AN3-ONd dNOdUD

g anss| '8500-dY-¢2-€8L L LE03
Apjioe4 ABiau3 o) alsepn uliang E
payiwi Buusautbul adoing ejueno)

Page 50



anss) |euuoy

¢¢ Jo g¢ abed 0P b0V 9¥00-dY-22-€8LL1L0E0
8€ [2t4 14 14 0L 161 yx41} L6 0.8 05 8'tS uiayinog YG €2 9102/€0/22
|24 |44 []§ 598 006 14 109 WI9]1SaM GL.EC 9102/€0/2C
€ [44 €2 [44 ol 161 yx4y" L¥6 0.8 0s 8'€S wayinog 80:00 9102/€0/¥0
02 0¢ 0l 98 006 14 8'GS UIS)SapA G2 €C 9102/€0/€0
SE V4 14 [44 0l 161 yx4y" L¥6 0.8 ot G'ES wayinog SC:€C 91L02/20/L L
12 |14 0l 598 006 414 825 UJS1SaM 01:00 9102/20/2t
8E €2 144 14 0L 161 yx4%} L¥6 0.8 05 8'¥S wayineg G0'€2 9102/10/L
82 8¢ 0l G98 006 114 865 UJ31SaM 6€.EC 9102/10/¥1
yed ed
uwoww_._.uz ameN | soynal | yoeag | Hojeas mn“““.mﬂ_ uwomww___u_._ amneN | sojynat | yoeag | woeas mhmmww.__
UMOIYSU; UmoysLy

(W) uoneso| (Ut

; (vigp . 20IN0s asiou pue g bae

(uiw o baeT) (v)gn (9191 Jususnipe uoieool Bunoyuow  (v)ap
Aepunog a1
usamlag souelsig  asIoN

Alepunog

9SION) S101daoal alliSUSS 1S9S0I0 e |3| SSION PaIEIndEeD B EERTS UOI}E20] 32IN0S 9SI0U PUB UOHEDD| J0}da09s Udaamiaq aouelsig

(Z'Z'4 uonoag) asIoN:| Hed — sajis uado pue uoloNISUoD UO [0JjU0D
UOIJBIGIA pUE 3sIoU 1o aooeld JO 9poD 10Z:LV+:6002:L-822S SA). sUNsay Buliojuopy uonenoey [eAs asioN awn-ybIN yasep - Aienuer ;panuiuod :¢°| alqet

910¢2/¥0/9¢
8500-0000-1dY-ANI-ONd dNOUYD

€ @nss| '8500-dy-2¢-€8L1 €03
Apjioe4 ABiau3 o) a)seAp LGN sm
pajywi Buuaauibug adoin3 E)UEADD

Page 51



Page 52



	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 27th April 2016.
	5 Minutes of the Special Committee on Waste Regulations meetings held on 13th April 2016, 27th April 2016, 19th May 2016
	Minutes of the Special Committee on Waste Regulations Meeting held on 19
	Minutes of the Special Committee on Waste Regulations Meeting held on 27

	8 Dublin Waste to Energy Project update report.

